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Mac Dougal Street

#74 -0 Ann Sickels Eagle Matthews
: 16 Sickeltown Road
Orangeburg, New York 10962

#76 George H. Smith, Jr.
Colette Smith Douglas
25 Charlton St.

New York, New York 11214

#78 Evelvn S. Nortén
c/o Henry K. Norton
78 MacDougal Street
New York, New York 10012
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a M Hauser

Lir M H y
80 MacDougal Street
New York, New York 10012
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Eve R. Stern
82 MacDougal Street
New York, New York 10012

84 Howard Rower & ano
84 MacDougal Street
New Tork, New York 10012
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Nellie Schneider

c/o William H. Schneider
82 MacDougal Street

New York, New York 10012

788 Barbara Northrop

c/o John B. Northrop, Jr.
88 MacDougal Street

New York, New York 10012

790 Gloria Naftali
c/o Raymond Naftali
90 MacDougal Street
New York, New York 10012

EON L Nedali Inwvasimant Covso.
c/o Charles Nager
Fif

535 Fifth Ave.

4 .
New York, New York 10017
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Sullivan Strest

#170 = .~

#172

£174

#176

#178

#1680

#182

7184

7186

MacDougal Street Cont.

Jill Schapiro

c/o Seth Schapiro

96 MacDougal Street

New York, New York 10012

Jay Furman & ano
170 Sullivan Street
New York, New York 10012

Robert Rubin & ane
172 Sullivan Street
New York, New York 10012

John A. S, Cushman et al
174 Sullivan Street
New York, New York 10012

George A Burton § ano
176 Sullivan Street
New York, New York 10012

Constance E. Bessis , c/o Simon M. Bessis

178 Zellivan Street
New York, New York 10012

Stephen E. Kaufman § ano
180 Sullivan Street
New York, New York 10012

Ira Cohen & ano
182 Sullivan Street
New York, New York 10012

Marion S. Kellogq& ano
184 Sullivan Street
New York, New York 10012

Claudia W. McNulty, c/o Donald S, McNulty

186 Sullivan Street

New York, New York 10012
Cheu Wen-Chung

188 Sullivan Street

New York, New York 10012
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h B, 19¢6, the Lin‘marks Preservaticn Commission held 2 rublic
proposss Jesignation =f the MacDru {van Gerdens Historic
Ne. LS). Th: hearing had been duly advertised in cecordance with
provisicns of law. There wes one speaker in opod designaticn, and
statements were filed in cppositicn o designati-n, T esident of the
ineDsugal-Sullivan Gariens Association representing the twenty-tws homes in the
propased Histeric District spcke in faver of designation. Scoven of the home
cwmars were individuzlly rccorded in faver of designaticn, as were two cther
psrscns.

DESCRIPTION AND ANALYSIS

The visitor, seeing this small Historic District, a few blocks south of
Wsshingtcon Square, for the first time, would find that he was trensported back
t- = mid-Tineteenth Century street scene. He would und-ubtedly wonder why these
continu.us rows of ~nce identical houses have survived so little changed, in
contrast to nearby blrcks. Those tlocks are now largely composed of turn-cf-the-
century tenements but als: inelude & number of small, carly Wineteenth Century
buildincs.

Tnis block owss its very existence todey to iwd frctsrs: the pelicies of
the Low family, which twned it for 125 years, and the farsighted philesophy of
a rezl csiate developer in the period after Wspld War I, Both ran ccunter to the
veiling real estate practices of their times.

The estate =f Yicholas Tow in 1BLL built the rows ~f three-story 2znd basement
nouses, in the then frshionable Oreck Revival s tyle, on Macdouzel and Housteon
Strects. A similar row was completed on Sulliven Street in 1850. The last of the
Sour bleoek fronts built un Bleecker Street (1860) ha¢ frur steries and dormered
roufs. (Tt is intcresting to nste that the use of dormers had zone cut of style
2bout 20 years before). An carly photozraph shows a handscme cast iron baleony
sutside the first flsor full lensth windows, running the entire length of the row.
Sufficient evicence is available from Building Department records of the 1680's

4o indicate that the original plan probably included shops at the ground floor.

trechitceture of the District

4 real estate corroraticn, "Hearth and Home", purchzsed the entire block in
1920 fr-m the estate of Nicholas Low, Inc. However, cniy the rows on Sullivan
end Macdougal Streets were remcdelled. Their architects, Frencis Y. Jcannes and
Hexwell Hydc, visely retained, on the Macdougal Street side, the criginal handscms
continvsus cornice ovnamented with modillions and the orizinel well propsortisned
six cver six mmutined windcws with plain lintels. These houses, taken topether,
give a strong rhythm end undty to the entire block front.

The stoops were removed, and the basement entrances and former docorweys were
pemodeiled in the nes-Federal style sc popular after world War I, The new
"¢ entrences have six-panelled d~ops 2nd side lights. The original paired doorways
£ the fermer first fiser level were changed o windeows and treated in alternating

n
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rat

unzopular G = Twiller, began
rarcslling sut the Bow - ir 16L1. The parcel contain z ¥redougal-
Sul1ivan block wes gcenveye” on Docember 15, 6Lk t: Picter 3anuimte, 8 free

negro. Sent:mee hat criginally worked £-r the West Indie Company and was latéy
rect.

The land passed through several Swners until it was scquired by Nicholes

Bevard in 1755 as an acditiin tc his "West sarms'. (his grendmother was a sister
«f Peter Stuyvesant.) s son, licholas the younger, conveysc it tc Daniel

1171w and Brogkh:lst Livingston in trust for the benefit_sf creditors. The
trustcoes begen conveying it in lot form on February 27, 1790,

Tow's 1796 purchase wes retained by his heirs for almest 100 years.
nich.olas Low (1739-1826) wes :nc of New Yurk's leading merchants and 2 notable
finzncial firure in the perics after the Revoluticn. He was a director oI the
Zamk of New Tork, the Branch Benk of the United States, a member of the State
Assembly; and & member ¢f the Wew Y-rk State Conventicn, which ratified the
United States Constituticn. Upen his death in 1826, he left his estate to his
sons, ¥ichulas and Cornelius.

This neizhd rhocd wes undeveloped during the lifetime =f the first Nichclas
Lew. Tusculun, the country ssat of Richard Varick, the second Mayor of Haw York
after the Revolution, was on the block buunded on the east by Sulliven Strest.
The correspandzncs betwsen Varick and Low regarding the paving of Sullivan Street
sti11 exists in the Low papers. However, in the carly 1830ts, as speculators
began to build the rows ~f mansicns <n Washington Square, Lafayette Strect and
St. Mark's Place frr wealthy merchants moving uptown and as the residential
wwighborhesd arcund the Battery and lsuer Orecnwirh Stroct gave way to expanding
commereial use, nearby Blaecker Street wos slsc developed., DePruw Row, which
cto~a -n the s-uth sife of 3leccker Strect between Sullivan and Th-mpson Streets
riplacun Tusculum. Onz oi lhe disrvays from this noted row hes hoen maved A
block cast and is now the drorway at the 3leccker Strect Cinema.

4s an instance of the fine residential architecture a»f the neighborhosd,
Crr-1l Place betwcen Thompson and Vest Broadwey (now Bleccker Strest) was lined
with a row ~f handscme Greek Revival houscs on the nsrth sice, ¢ -mparable to
those ~n Washingtcn Squere, and wn the scuth side by a fine late Federal Row
similar b5 that on St Mark's Place. The Lows built 170 Bleecker Street (1835-
34) for their sister, Henrietta, who had married Charlcs King. The asscciation
between the tws familics was 2 long cne, cdating back to the late Fighteenth
Century. Nicholas Low was the agent for Rurus King's financial affairs, when
¥inz was the United States Minister tz London.

Charles ¥ing, the son i Rufus, wWas preoprictor and editor «f the Vew Y-rk
icens  He wos & notatle fipure io that sceiety recorded in the diaries of
in Hone and Geor slet.n Strong. He was not particularly suceessful
! he L-w incrme was of help t- hi L few yeors

. Courier fnd Inguirer, :
mz the prosident of €oluebia €1
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Cornelius Low who cdied in 1849 nor Nich-las w 3
the name f Low i
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1ieh-olas Low, Ine. s°1d this s
7 as "Hearth and Home'. U iam Sluz
ternative sclutizn ts the tapartment ho
he renovatisn of shund <1 buildings
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Current practice, then as nuw, was to build ¢n lend on the psriphery of the

city or to demclish existing structures to provide sites fur larger buildings.
He felt that the remcfelling of some of these charming existing structures would
howe a two=fold result: it would comserve neichborhiods w10se nly future would

wise be as 2 semi-slum consisting of rcoming and boarcing houses, and it
ztiractive mocd.rately priced housing fer Nyt tepg, DUSINESSMEN,
s ard musicians." The renovation costs werc to be kept minimal

@
or
hanping the extericrs and intericrs as little as p-ezible, while rroviding
w wiring, plumbing and kitchen facilities.

0.77in was the ~randscn of a founder 57+, & J. Sleane & Cr. He wos 2
apd later a vice-president af the firm. In 192L, he wss elocted 2

epastee of the Metropslitan Musewn of irt and in 1831 became its president. He
corpined interest in his business with service it the Museum. Czffin elready
had experience in refeveloping properties purchases from Trinity Church in what
:s n-w the Cherlicn-King-Vandam Yistorie District. Certainly his philcsophy wWes
‘psible for the survivel of many of these fine hcusss, as well as the cnes
afed in this District. The Sullivan and Macdougal Strests “evelopment was

= lergest of this type to be unfcrtaken, The intericrs of the houses were all
'2siened to include a five-room lower duplex, a four-rs-m apartment on the secnr

v and tus non-housekecping apartments on the third floor.

4 very important festurs of the plen wos the use of the open arca in the
interior of the block., Each house hes a small private parien, tut the large
central arca was set aside for commen use, parts of vhich were specifically
g loped for childirsn's playgrnund ercas. The number of rcsidents using the
ccmmunal garden limited the remocdelling 3f the houscs - the Sullivan and
scisuesal Strect rows, The buildings on Houston and Bleccker Streets included
oririnal plan were s~ld.

=
o 0
R
=
[e]
5]
=
cr
=
[
o2
=
s
£
T
=]
ot
e
ok
=y
o
]
[+
—
&
[
[&]
=

nzde & 1 nz problem and is 2n
excellent exemple of what ean be cone o other properties in the city, and the
rehcoilitation of himey -1d buildings". The Flan of Hearth and Home has become
a prototype for many ~ther developments. Turtle Bay Garicens, Bleccker Gardens
er~ Miss inne Mcr-an's plan for Sutton Place ali inv.lved the rchakilitation of
housss arcund a common garden.

years later, the principal idess lai” down by ¥illiam
-dels for urban eity housinz. sririnal cxperiment
ivan and Macisusal Strects has bacn hishly suceessful.
s.17 tr individuzl cwncrs, WA, thr-uch:ut the years
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w Mty and vhiceh
#ietinet sectl

Tha Con tont gqualis the tvo
rows of hous and shrri 1 QOMmen
T are st v guality

= £ uilliam 3

2

= use of these old tuildirzs srd Ris ide
communal gardens, were when first initisted revolutionary in concept; and that
they vere destined to have far-reaching, peneficisl cfiscts on the development
of our City. )

in ©rescrving m

]

. hocordingly, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 8-A of the Charbter of
the City of lew York snd Chapter §-L of the Administretive Cede of the City of
Wew York, the Lendmarks Proservetion Commission Aasigznstes 55 an Historic
District the MacDougzl-Sulliven Gardens Historic Sisirict, Borcough of Manhattan,
censisting of the property boundcd by Hoedougsl Strect, the northorn properiy
linc of 96 Mocdeugzl Stroct, the cestern property line of 96 Mocdougal Street,
the nerihern property linz of 188 Sullivan Strest, Sullivan Strect, the scuthern
properiy .5 of 170 Sulliven Strect ond the southern property 1inc of Th
Macdouzal Stroet.




